Call to Order:

Pledge of Allegiance:

Roll Call:

Special Business

Public Comment

Village of Wadsworth
Minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting
Held at the Village Hall
March 19, 2024

President Witte called the meeting of the Village Board of Trustees to order at
6:00 pm.

President Witte led the Pledge of Allegiance.

In attendance in person were Village Trustees Geralyn Hansen, Robert Hayden,
Ben Dolan, Ken Furlan, Matt Polheber and Mildred Corder. Village President
Fred Witte, Village Administrator Pat DiPersio, Village Attorney Megan Mack
and Village Clerk Darlene Roback were also physically present.

There was no Special Business.

Public Comment Item No. 1: Proposed Cannabis Dispensary
Kalee Hooghkirk, representing Midwest G Holdings, addressed those present
regarding a proposed cannabis dispensary to be located within the Village. She
provided an artist’s rendering of the proposed facility which will include
additional retail space and stated that Midwest G Holdings maintains four main
corporate commitments to align with the best interests of the community:

e Preservation of natural beauty; eco friendly

¢ Focus on community safety and security

e Economic advancement and economic growth for the community

e Creating a cannabis dispensary that is a Destination Spot

Louis Lang next addressed those present stating that there are two proposals for a
cannabis dispensary in the Village — one is on the Agenda for this evening and
the one that he is associated with is not. He requested the Trustees to send the
matter on the Agenda relating to the cannabis dispensary back to the Planning
Commission in order that they may study both proposals and recommend to the
Trustees which of the proposals is best for the Village. Mr. Lang commented
about the need for medical cannabis and the physical limitations of the
individuals who would seek to purchase medical cannabis at the dispensary. He
noted his proposal provided for greater parking accessibility for those individuals
which would attract them to the dispensary, in addition to the recreational
cannabis users, thus providing greater sales tax revenue for the Village.

Next to address those present on the proposed cannabis dispensary was Tom
Duffy. Mr. Duffy stated that he was the original developer of the site. He
commented that the current building is 20% larger than the previous building at
9,200 sq. ft. and maintains easy access for customers in and out of the site. He
noted that, due to the larger building, the site will now have a fewer number of
parking spaces.

The next speaker was Robert Long who addressed those present on the proposed
site on the Southeast corner of IL Route 173 and US Highway 41. Mr. Long
noted that the building in the artist’s rendering presented by Ms. Hooghkirk
would be erected on the site. He commented that this large building would block
the view from the road of the auto parts junk yard located on the site. Mr. Long
stated that the owners of the property would pledge to post a bond to ensure that
the building would be completed. He asked that the Trustees provide the owners



Establish Consent Agenda:

Approval of Consent Agenda:

Old Business:

Village of Wadsworth
Minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting
Held at the Village Hall
March 19, 2024

of the property with the opportunity to present this proposal to the Village Board
at a later date.

The next speaker was Tim O’Hern. Mr. O’Hern stated that he would be speaking
on behalf of Nature’s Grace and Wellness and then introduced Sarah Zematis
who spoke for Green and Randle who partner with Nature’s Grace and Wellness.
Ms. Zematis noted that her company is women and veteran owned. She stated
that she discovered medical cannabis when her daughter was diagnosed with an
inoperable brain tumor. Ms. Zematis commented that her daughter was one of
the first patients in Illinois to use medical cannabis and stated that it has
benefitted her. Ms. Zematis added that there would be curb-side delivery at the
facility for those patrons with mobility issues. Mr. O’Hern then stated that
Nature’s Grace and Wellness was the original cannabis dispensary licensee in the
State of Illinois. He added that there are approximately 175 cannabis
dispensaries located in the state today and that Illinois statute provides for a total
of 500 licensed cannabis dispensaries. Mr. O’Hara stated that 70% to 85% of
cannabis transactions at the dispensary would be online. Customers go to the
website, place their order and then pick up the order in the dispensary. Pick-up
times average between three to seven minutes in store per transaction.

A motion was made by Trustee Corder, seconded by Trustee Hayden, to establish
a Consent Agenda to approve the following items:

Approval of the March 5, 2024 Village Board Regular Meeting Minutes
Approval of Bills to be Paid as of March 19, 2024

Approval of Checks Issued Between Meetings (02/16/2024 — 03/14/2024)
Approval of the February 2024 Treasurer’s Report

e o

Voice Vote: Ayes— All. Nays - None. Motion Carried.

A motion was made by Trustee Furlan, seconded by Trustee Corder, to approve
the Consent Agenda, as presented.

Roll Call Vote:

Ayes: Hansen, Hayden, Dolan, Polheber, Furlan, Corder
Nays: None

Motion Carried.

Discussion was held regarding possible Action to Approve a Conditional Use
Permit and a Variation for the Property Located at 41509 N. US Highway 41.

Mr. O’Hern spoke on behalf of Nature’s Grace and Wellness. He noted that the
proposed site has the largest tenant space and could generate tax revenue of 3%
for the Village. Mr. O’Hern provided an ariel slide which showed the locations
of the cannabis dispensaries currently operating near the Village of Wadsworth.
Mr. O’Hern commented that the Village Planner provided a Planner’s Report
during the review process. He added that the Planners’ Report stated that the site
has adequate parking.



New Business:

Village of Wadsworth
Minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting
Held at the Village Hall
March 19, 2024

Mr. Luey Aboona, principal with KOLA, next commented that a traffic study
conducted confirmed that the site has adequate parking with 50 spaces. The site
also has good proximity to highway access and will attract customers traveling

on IL Route 173, US Highway 41 as well as those traveling to and from
Wisconsin on Interstate 94. It has adequate turn lanes with signal timing. Mr.
Aboona stated that IDOT have asked for a deceleration lane on US Highway 41
which they have agreed to provide. He noted that approximately 70% of
customers will utilize online ordering with instore product pick-up. This will
enable a higher turnover of parking spaces as customers will not be spending
much time in the dispensary. The multi-use building will also aid in minimizing
customer traffic impact as the different businesses will have alternate peak hours
of operation. Mr. Aboona added that curbside pickup could be offered for
medical customers with mobility issues.

The next speaker was Mr. Roger Dillman, Vice President of Retail Operations for
Curaleaf. Mr. Dillman has overall responsibility for the Curaleaf stores and
attends all store openings. Mr. Dillman commented on the customer experience.
He noted that many customers utilize pre-orders wherein they arrive at the
dispensary, present their ID, pay for their purchase and leave the premises.
Others are repeat customers who come in knowing what they wish to purchase.
Typical transactions are completed in less than 10 minutes. Mr. Dillman stated
that competition between dispensaries is high. Mr. Dillman advised that the
majority of business transactions are cash; however, credit card payment is
accepted. He stated that there is a security guard at the point of entry and that the
security guard conducts a perimeter check a few times each day.

The final speaker was Drake Carpenter who advised on cannabis dispensary
security. He stated that the State of Illinois mandates that each dispensary has a
third-party security guard; and that the security guard may be armed or not
depending on the needs of the dispensary. Mr. Carpenter stated that the security
officers are trained and are state certified. Most are ex-military or ex-police
officers. He noted that dispensaries also utilize a camera monitoring system
which provides surveillance of both the store and the parking area. He
commented that the dispensary patrons are there to purchase product; not to
cause disruption or bring crime to a community.

A motion was made by Trustee Furlan, seconded by Trustee Corder, to Approve
a Conditional Use Permit and a Variation for the Property Located at 41509 N.
US Highway 41.

Roll Call Vote:

Ayes: Hansen, Hayden, Dolan, Polheber, Furlan, Corder
Nays: None

Motion Carried.

New Business Item No. 1
Discussion was held regarding possible Action to Approve a Resolution
Supporting Safe Schools and Open Communication.




Village President’s Report:

Village Attorney’s Report:

Village Administrator’s
Report

Village of Wadsworth
Minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting
Held at the Village Hall
March 19, 2024

A motion was made by Trustee Dolan, seconded by Trustee Hansen, to Approve
a Resolution Supporting Safe Schools and Open Communication.

Roll Call Vote:

Ayes: Hansen, Hayden, Dolan, Polheber, Furlan, Corder
Nays: None

Motion Carried.

Village President Witte provided information on the 25% Annual First
Responders’ Expo; noting that the Village is not being asked for a donation at
this time.

President Witte stated that he met with Newport Township Historical Society.
He noted that they are struggling financially, and the Historical Society is not
sure how it will proceed with their annual fundraising. He added that he and
Trustee Hansen are currently looking at having a band for the 150™ Anniversary
and are looking at a local group, “Another Shade of Gray”. The band performs
standard 60’s and 70‘s rock music. Trustee Hansen commented that we could
have some festivities during the day for children and suggested a children’s
parade down Wadsworth Road. The next step is to put together an Agenda and a
food menu for the 150™ Anniversary celebration scheduled for fall 2024.

President Witte stated that he received a report on the Quiet Zone Study. He
noted the approximate cost to begin the proposal for a consultant to perform the
initial assessment is $38,000. He stated that we will not know what we need
without the initial assessment. President Witte added that it may be possible to
get Lake County to contribute as it is a County road. Trustee Dolan will bring
the Quiet Zone issue to the Road and Bridge Committee to give it a full review.

Village Attorney Mack did not provide a report.
Village Administrator DiPersio noted the following in providing his report:

The Village received the last salt from the 2023 salt order today.

The salt order for 2024 has been submitted.

Corey and Mike are working on the baseball diamond infield. Additional
material is needed, and quotes on two options are being reviewed.

e He is currently in-process of updating the Village job descriptions as
well as completing 2023 year-end performance reviews for Village
employees.

e Code enforcement numbers are increasing with the better weather.
Bob’s return-to-work date will be confirmed later this week.

e The site plan for the Brown’s Chicken restaurant has been received.

e An updated site plan for the wood sales business on Route 173 has been
received.

e Currently working with the property owner of the Pyramid House on
Dilley’s Road on options to put the property into compliance without
additional zoning approval.



Committee Reports:
Finance:

Public Service:

Planning, Zoning & Plats:

Road and Bridge:

Ordinance:

Parks and Village Hall:

Adjournment:

Village of Wadsworth
Minutes of the Regular Village Board Meeting
Held at the Village Hall
March 19, 2024

e The full application for Midwest G Holding cannabis dispensary has not
been received.

Trustee Polheber did not provide a Finance Report.

Trustee Hansen noted that the Village Easter Egg Hunt is coming up on Saturday,
March 30". The Queens will be in attendance.

Trustee Hayden commented on the Brown’s Chicken restaurant noting that it
would serve liquor (served by the store manager) and have gaming. It was noted
that the restaurant would have a full kitchen and that most individuals would go
to the location just for the chicken. The restaurant’s concept is different than a
gaming parlor.

Trustee Dolan did not provide a Road and Bridge Report.

Trustee Furlan stated that he will work to set up a meeting of the Ordinance
Committee.

Trustee Corder did not provide a Parks and Village Hall Report.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:42 p.m. on a motion
by Trustee Furlan, seconded by Trustee Corder.

Voice Vote: Ayes - All. Nays - None. Motion carried.

L AA

Darlene Roback, Village Clerk




